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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF RHODE ISLAND

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff, CADQ— &20

V.
COMPLAINT FOR

CVS PHARMACY, INC., also d/b/a/ INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER
CVS/PHARMACY, EQUITABLE RELIEF

Defendant.

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”), through its undersigned attorneys,
alleges as follows:

1. Plaintiff FTC brings this action under Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), to secure a permanent injunction,
rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, disgorgement of
ill-gotten monies, and other equitable relief against Defendant for engaging in deceptive acts
or practices in connection with the advertising, marketing, and sale of the CVS AirShield
line of products (“AirShield™), which are purported to prevent or reduce the risk of colds, in
violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 52.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

Z; This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a),
52, and 53(b), and 28 US.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a) and 1345.

' Venue in this District is proper under 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) and 28 U.S.C.

§§ 1391(b) and (c).
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THE PARTIES

4, Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission, is an independent agency of the
United States Government created by statute. See 15 U.S.C. §§ 41-58. The FTC enforces
Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or
practices in or affecting commerce. The FTC also enforces Section 12 of the FTC Act, 1_5
U.S.C. § 52, which prohibits false advertisements for foods, drugs, devices, services, or
cosmetics in or affecting commerce. The FTC, through its own attorneys, may initiate
federal district court proceedings to enjoin violations of the FTC Act and to secure such other
equitable relief, including rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of
monies paid, and disgorgement of ill-gotten monies, as may be appropriate in each case. 15
U.S.C. § 53(b).

5. Defendant CVS Pharmacy, Inc., also d/b/a CVS/pharmacy (“CVS™), isa
Delaware corporation with its principal place of business at 1 CVS Drive, Woonsocket,
Rhode Island, 02895. CVS retail stores are located throughout the United States and the
District of Rhode Island. Since July 2005, acting alone or in concert with others, CVS has
marketed, distributed, and sold its AirShield products to consumers throughout the United
States. CVS transacts or has transacted business in the District of Rhode Island.

COMMERCE
6. The acts and practices of Defendant, as alleged herein, have been in or

affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.
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DEFENDANT’S COURSE OF BUS SS
7. Since July 2005 and continuing thereafter, Defendant CVS has advertised,
promoted, offered for sale, sold, and distributed AirShield to the public. Sales of AirShield,

at CVS stores and on the CVS website at www.cvs.com, from July 2005 through Octobér

2008, exceeded $14 million.

8. AirShield comes in an effervescent tablet form and a non-effervescent powder
form. According to the product label, AirShield contains Vitamins A, C, and E; minerals,
including zinc; electrolytes; amino acids; and a “proprietary” blend of herbal extracts,
including echinacea. The formula of ingredients used in AirShield products purportedly
replicates the formula originated by and used in Airborne products manufactured and sold by
Airborne Health, Inc. Product directions indicate that AirShield can be used by both adults
and children.

9. CVS created, prepared, disseminated, or caused to be disseminated
advertisements, product packages and labels, information for pharmacists and pharmacy
technicians to convey to CVS customers, and other promotional material, including, but not
limited to, the attached Exhibits A through H, containing, among other things, the following
statements and depictions:

a. CVS AirShield Package (Exhibit A)
[Graphic: cartoon depiction of multicolored germs, and cartoon
illustration of several people standing in a line in front of a theater. A
man dispensing tickets coughs or sneezes on a woman in front of him

as she recoils in horror. Also in line are a man and woman looking in
disgust at another man who is spreading germs as he blows his nose.]
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Compare to Airborne®

» Antioxidants

» Electrolytes

» Amino Acids

* 1000 mg of Vitamin C
« Six Herbal Extracts

FOR USE IN:

« SCHOOLS

» AIRPLANES

» OFFICES

« HEALTH CLUBS
« THEATERS

« RESTAURANTS

ORANGE FLAVOR
CVS pharmacy

AIRSHIELD

IMMUNE BOOSTING FORMULA*
EFFERVESCENT FORMULA =« DIETARY SUPPLEMENT
10 TABLETS

* This statement has not been evaluated by the Food and Drug
Administration. This product is not intended to diagnose, treat, cure or
prevent any disease.

b.  CVS AirShield Package (Exhibit B)

[Graphic: cartoon depiction of multicolored germs, and cartoon
illustration of several people standing in a line in front of a theater. A
man dispensing tickets coughs or sneezes on a woman in _front of him
as she recoils in horror. Also in line are a man and woman looking in
disgust at another man who is spreading germs as he blows his nose.]

_ Compare to Airborne®

« Antioxidants
= Electrolytes
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« Amino Acids
* 1000 mg of Vitamin C
* Seven Herbal Extracts

TAKE ANYWHERE
SINGLE SERVE
POWDER PACKETS

SUGAR FREE * PINK LEMONADE FLAVOR

CVS pharmacy

AIRSHIELD

IMMUNE BOOSTING DRINK MIX*

SUGAR FREE « NO FIZZ FORMULA

DIETARY SUPPLEMENT

Add to bottled water!

8 SINGLE SERVE

POWDER PACKETS

* This statement has not been evaluated by the Food and Drug
Administration. This product is not intended to diagnose, treat, cure or
prevent any disease.

3 CVS Circular in Newspapers Nationwide, Nov. 26, 2006 (Exhibit C)

[picture shows two packages of CVS AirShield, together with other
CVS brand products for coughs and cold and flu symptoms]

Compare to Airborne [picture shows package of Airborne]
and Save Over 30%

499 with CARD
CVS/pharmacy AirShield

d. CVS Website Advertisement (Exhibit D)
Medicine Cabinet . . .

[picture of AirShield package]
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CVS AirShield Effervescent Tablets
Lemon-Lime Flavor . . .

Description

Immune boosting formula.* Antioxidants, electrolytes, amino acids,
1000 mg of Vitamin C, seven herbal extracts. For use in: schools,
airplanes, offices, health clubs, theaters, restaurants.

*This product is not intended to diagnose, treat, cure or prevent any
disease.

& CVS Website Advertisement (Exhibit E)
Vitamins & Supplements . . .
[picture of AirShield package]

CVS AirShield Drink Mix Single Serve
Packets Pink Lemonade . . .

Description

Immune boosting drink mix.* Take anywhere. Single serve powder
packets. Antioxidants, electrolytes, amino acids, 1000 mg of vitamin
C, seven herbal extracts. Sugar free. No fizz formula. Add to boitled
water.

*This product is not intended to diagnose, treat, cure or prevent any
disease.

f. CVS/pharmacy Capsule - August 26, 2005 (Exhibit F)

A WEEKLY OPERATIONAL UPDATE FOR CVS PHARMACISTS
AND TECHNICIANS

CVS BRAND MERCHANDISING . . .
NEW IN CVS/PHARMACY BRAND

Just in time for back-to-school and cold season, we are launching

6
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CVS/pharmacy Brand Airshield, our own version of the immune-
boosting dietary supplement Airborne. This supplement has become
so popular that last season retailers everywhere were often out of
stock. This year, we will be able to meet your patients’ demand with
CVS/pharmacy Brand Airshield, available in Orange . . . and Lemon-
Lime <

Unlike other store brand versions of Airborne, CVS/pharmacy brand
Airshield is tested to be 100% equivalent to the national brand, from
taste to ingredients.

CVS Airshield can be found in your store’s Cold aisle, and on this
season’s Cold Endcap.

g. CVS/pharmacy Express Magazine - January/February 2006 (Exhibit
G)

Remind customers that CVS/pharmacy Brand products are 100%
satisfaction Guaranteed.

[picture shows a box of Airborne and a box of CVS AirShield)
Stay Ahead of Coughs and Colds

Preventing a cold is often easier than getting rid of one. Frequent
handwashing or use of a liquid hand sanitizer are among the best ways
to fend off a winter bug. Another increasingly common approach to
staying healthy is to take immune-system boosting supplements, such
as CVS/pharmacy Brand AirShield.

Modeled after Airborne — the immune-system booster that was so
popular last winter most retailers struggled to keep it in stock —
CVS/pharmacy Brand AirShield was just introduced last fall. The
effervescent tablets contain the same combination of antioxidants,
electrolytes, amino acids and vitamins as the national brand, and are
identical in taste and strength. AirShield comes in orange and lemon-
lime flavors and costs 27% less than its brand-name counterpart.
CVS/pharmacy colleagues, of course, get an additional 30% off of that
that [sic] price, and on all CVS/pharmacy Brand products.
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Our customers tell us that they’re more likely to try a CVS/pharmacy
Brand item when a friend or pharmacist recommends it. You can help
our customers get a great value and a terrific product when you
encourage them to try our brand. If you’re not yet familiar with
CVS/pharmacy Brand, take a few moments to familiarize yourself
with the products we offer. Read the labels, look at the packaging, and
try them out (remember, you receive 30 percent off CVS/pharmacy
Brand products). That way, you’ll feel confident in recommending
any CVS/pharmacy Brand product to your customers.

Use these coupons below and see for yourself . ..
h. CVS/pharmacy Express Magazine - Fall 2006 (Exhibit H)

Remind customers that CVS/pharmacy Brand products are 100%
satisfaction Guaranteed.

An Ounce of Prevention (and Treatment)

Old and new products will bring relief during cough and cold
season

Of course, the best way to avoid treating a cold is to prevent it. And
two innovative new CVS/pharmacy Brand products can help your
customers stay healthier this season. CVS is the first to offer these
products — there are no national brand equivalents available. This
helps us stay ahead of the competition, and gives our customers a great
value on a unique product.

Taking a cue from the popular “on the go™ individually packaged
drink mixes, our immune-system boosting CVS/pharmacy Brand
AirShield line is now available in powdered form in pre-measured
sleeves that you can mix with bottled water. An equivalent to
Airbome, CVS AirShield has become one of our most popular cough
and cold products. It contains the same combination of antioxidants,
electrolytes, amino acids and vitamins as the national brand. . . .

Our customers tell us they’re more likely to try a CVS/pharmacy
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Brand item when a friend or pharmacist recommends it. If you’re not
yet familiar with CVS/pharmacy Brand, take a few moments to
familiarize yourself with the products we offer. Read the labels, look
at the packaging, and try them out (remember, CVS colleagues receive
30% off all CVS/pharmacy Store Brand products).
|picture shows a box of CVS AirShield]

DEFENDANT’S VIOLATIONS OF THE FTC ACT

10.  Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits unfair or deceptive
acts or practices in or affecting commerce. Section 12(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 52(a),
prohibits the dissemination of any false advertisement in or affecting commerce for the
purpose of inducing, or which is likely to induce, the purchase of food, drugs, devices,
services, or cosmetics. For the purposes of Section 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 52, the
AirShield products are “foods” or “drugs” pursuant to Section 15(b) and (c) of the FTC Act,
15 U.S.C. § 55(b) and (c). As set forth below, Defendant has engaged in such unlawful
practices in connection with the marketing and sale of the AirShield products.

11.  Through the means described in Paragraph 9, including the statements and
depictions contained in the advertisements attached as Exhibits A through H, among others,
Defendant CVS has represented, expressly or by implication, that the AirShield products:

a. Reduce the risk of or prevent colds;
b. Protect against or help fight germs;
c. Protect against colds in crowded places, such as schools, airplanes,

offices, health clubs, theaters, and restaurants; and

d. Boost the body’s immune system thereby providing protection against
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colds.
12.  The representations set forth in Paragraph 11 were not substantiated at the
time the representations were made. Therefore, the representations set forth in Paragraph 11
constitute deceptive acts or practices, and the dissemination of false advertisements, in or
affecting commerce, in violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a)
and 52.

CONSUMER INJURY

13.  Consumers throughout the United States have suffered substantial monetary
loss as a result of Defendant’s unlawful acts and practices. In addition, Defendant has been
unjustly enriched as a result of its unlawful practices. Absent relief by this Court, Defendant
is likely to continue to injure consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and harm the public
interest.

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF

14.  Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to
grant injunctive and such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate to halt and redress
violations of the FTC Act. The Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award
other ancillary relief, including, but not limited to, rescission or reformation of contracts,
restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies caused by

Defendant’s law violations.

10
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission, pursuant to Section 13(b) of
the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), and the Court’s own equitable powers, requests that the
Court:

1. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violaiﬁons of the FTC Act by
Defendant;

Z, Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers
resulting from Defendant’s violations of the FTC Act, including, but not limited to,
rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the

disgorgement of ill-gotten monies from Defendant; and

11
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3. Award Plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

WILLARD K. TOM
General Counsel

/\

Dated: Septembér 8, 2009 _ =
GREGORY W. FORTSCH
NI 035061994; NJ Dist. Court GF 2244
CAROL J. JENNINGS
DC 236513
Trial Counsel
600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, NJ-3212
Washington, DC 20580
Tel: 202-326-3617 (Fortsch),
202-326-3010 (Jennings)
Fax: 202-326-3259
gfortsch@ftc.gov
cjennings@ftc.gov

Attorneys for Plaintiff
Federal Trade Commission

12
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CVS BRAND MERCHANDISING

Contace: Phil Greil, Ext, 5811
NEW IN CVS/PHARMACY BRAND

Just in time for back-to-school and cold season, we are launching CVS/pharmacy Brand Airshield, our own version
of the immune-boosting dietary supplement Airborne. This supplement has become so popular that last season
retailers everywhere were often out of stock. This year, we will be able to meet your patients’ demand with
CVS/pharmacy Brand Airshield, available in Orange (item #320711), and Lemon-Lime (item # 320712).

The effervescent tablets (drop 1 in 4-6 oz. of water) contain the same combination of antioxidants, electrolytes,
amino acids and vitamins as the national brand.

However, CVS Airshield costs at least 20% less than
the national brand, and comes with our 100%
Money Back Guarantee.

i
Crrengar 18,

Unlike other store brand versions of Airborne, CVS/pharmacy < i T
brand Airshield is tested to be 100% equivalent to the national
brand, from taste to ingredients.

-

Z
B

CVS Airshield can be found in your store's Cold aisle, and on
this season’s Cold Endcap.

TR e

Also Now Available:

CVS/pharmacy Brand Chest Congestion Relief Expectorant (Item # 297885). These easy-to-swallow tablets contain
the same active ingredient as found in the OTC Humibid "e", and in Mucinex: 400 mg Guafenesin.

_ The 400 mg Guafenesin is the maximum allowed in an immediate relegta tablet.

Because the unigue Mucinex formula is time release, patients can get the same maximum dosage by taking
CVS/pharmacy Brand tablets every 4 hours instead of every 12 hours, and still save over 30% vs. Mucinex.

Mucinex 20 ct. has 5 days of treatment, and CVS/pharmacy Chest Congestion Relief 50 ct. has 8.3 days treatment.

CVS Chest Congestion can be used by adults and children 6-12 years of
age (1/2 tablet), but Mucinex
labeling does not have dosage for o —

children under 12.
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100% satisfaction Guaranteed!

LI i : Shuster Quality Rating
= S i .~ . 10.0

= Sthooh
S

A\
b HeatmGnte 55 3
= "5 AIRSHIELL
IMMUNE BOOSTING FORMULA® & J

FFFERVESCENT.
TOTABLETS

Mational Brand

Preventing & cold is cften easier then getting rid of one. Frequent CVS/pharmacy Brand
handwashing or use of a liguid hand sanitizet are among the best same Active maredients
ways o fend off a winter bug. Another incredsingly common

approach to staying healthy' is to take immune-systam boesting

supplements, such as CVS/pharmacy Brand AirShield.

Modeled aiter Airborme — e irz-nmunevsyslierh booster that was so
popular last winter most reta iers strugglad to ke it 1 stock —
CV&/phannacy Brand AirShield was ll’-“»{ intradl Jjcad fast fall.

The efervescent tabless contain the same comblination of
antioxidants, atecticlvies, amino acids and vilaming as the national
rand, and are identical in taste and strehqth. A;'r'Shiei('! comas’in
orange and lamon-ime flavors: and costs 27% less lhdﬂ its brand-
name oL m!,e‘r'pa;i OVS/pharmacy c-—»upaque;% of ¢ c*uurs& get an
additional 30% off 'of that that price, and o all C\-’Sfpham acy
Brand products.

Curcustomers iefl us that they're more likely 0o try 8

CV&/pharmacy Srand item when a friend or pharmacisi

recormimends il You can help our customers get a great va!ue a

a tenific ;delfrf when you encourage them 1o try our brand.

you're not yet farmiliar with CVS/phaitnacy Brand, take a few a money back
moments to familiarize voursel with-the praducis we offer. Read the Satelaciion Duaraniee

{abels, look at the packaging, and trytherm out remember, you -

receive 30 parcent off CVS/pharmacy Brand products). That way,

youl Il feel confident v recomimending any C¥S/pharmaty Brand

product foyeur customenrs,

- CVSBrand

Save $1 .00 .n any Save $1 .000n any

CVS/pharmacy AirShield CVS/pharmacy AirShield

Bxplres 4/30/06 Expires 4/30/06 Explres 4/30/06
‘This ceupon goud for CWEpharmaty employess only. One uss per = This coupon goad for CVS/gharmacy employees only. Ona use per This coupon good far GYB/harmacy smployses only, Une use per
person, Discount spplles ity 1o tems hat ara grester than 51.00, parsen, Dlscount appikes enly T ltems thet are grealer than $1.00. person. Dlscount appliss only o Hams tat are greater than §1.00,
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100% satisfaction Guaranteed!

Old and new products will bring relief TUSS’N
—Cough

during cough and cold season e M
DM

5o your customer has e cold and a nasty cough? Have 7 COUGH FORMULA
fhen try CVS/pharinacy Brand Tussin DM. An'equivaleit COUBHSUFPRESSANT EXPECTORANT
o Robitussin GM, this' liguid cough remedy comtains the i « Controls

COUGHS

same active ingredients as the national brand, and is

iclentical n aste and stréngth. Best of all, it costs 52 I“O ik « Loosens & Relieves

less than the equivalent national brand (8 oz. size). This : CHEST
Yo ; ) Congestion :
combination of value and quality is why our sl SROTEIAG

G\fS."pham‘qr ! Brand products are the highest ratec| el _
: ¢ z ALCOHOL-FREE s
store brand products among shoppers. Chitren 0 Aduts |

Of course, the best way o avoid yeating a eold igto

prevent it And two innovative new CVSH narmacy: Br: dm—_
products can hc"!p your cistomers stay healihier this: ‘
seascn. CVS s the first to offer these piodilicts — there are.
no national "I‘aﬂd squlivalents aval abun Tl h@i;}s us stay |
ahead of the compstition. Cm{i gives our cu :mrrﬂra a
gleat value ona umuup produc* ' '

Al approximately the

siza of a ballpoiit pen m -
e of | ' CVS il

and & price of just :
. i - harmacy i
$1.79, ow new nstant ° "Ew' o
Hanhd Sanitizing Spray

it Al helie e i wﬁh botied water. An ﬂquwaie; 10 Alrborne cVS
VLU Al HAD 2

| Sh} old has bemmo one of GUr Tost popuiax Pough ':_ :
-. Compare ta and cold producf[s. it contaitis. the sar ne ccmbma‘aon of
e ﬁw{mme”" : ‘ﬁmt@ddam- ﬂlﬁz‘lﬁﬂ'OlV%S‘“ aming acids-and vitarn 1m<: ag
the ﬂa.loﬂcx dbrand, Tl 1@ difference? The national brand
doesn't offer these easy-to-imix, pon”rabl_e packets.

Qur customars el us that thev're more likely to iy a

CVS/pharmacy Brand lfem when a friend or

pharmacy R . . ; pharmagist recommends it If -yfou'i'_e not vel familiar
i ‘? with CVS/pharmacy Brand, take a few moments o

A ’ RS H ’ E L D wv,i' 15 familiarize yourself with the products we offer, Read
: E ! the labels, look at the packaging; and try thern out
SUGAR FREE - 000 FI27 FORMULA _ (remember, CVS colleagues receive 300% off all

DIETARY SUPPLEMENT
Add to bottled water! CVS/pharmacy Store Brand producis).

B SINGLE SERVE
POWDER PACKETS

SUGAR FREE




